Ingham Substance Abuse Prevention
Coordinating Council

ISAP Meeting Minutes
February 1, 2006
LPD South Precinct

11:30 am

Present:

Becky Allen, Michigan State University Rebecca.allen@hc.msu.edu
Harriett Dean, PPS/EISD hdean@eaton.k12.mi.us
Andrina Donaldson, Ingham County Sheriff’s Department ~ so_donaldson@ingham.org
Joel Eisinger, Lutheran Social Services of Michigan upwardjourneys@hotmail.com
Micki Fuhrman, PPS/EISD mfuhrman@eaton.k12.mi.us
Sharon Granger, Capital Area United Way s.granger(@capitalareaunitedway.org
Marie Hansen, Community Member hansenm3@msu.edu
Tine Laux, SAMHSA-CSAP Fellow (w ODCP) grin@cablespeed.com
Sara Lurie, PPS/EISD slurie@eaton.k12.mi.us
Rod MacDonald, Community Member retiredmac@mac.com
Pat McKinley, Cristo Rey Community Center patcrcc@earthlink.net
Sharon McWilliams, Lansing School District sharon.mcwilliams@lansingschools.net
Amy Moore, Ingham County Health Department amoore(@ingham.org
Michelle Nicholson, Ingham ISD and 0 to 5 Committee mnichols@inghamisd.org
Elizabeth Schrock, Capital Coalition for Youth eschrock@ingham.org
Jenny Thurber, Davenport University jennythurber@davenport.edu
Karen Waters, Cristo Rey Community Center karencrcc@earthlink.net
I. Call to Order: 11:45 am

Chairperson Rod MacDonald called the meeting to order at 11:45 am and had each
person introduce him or herself.

Il. New Business:



a. ACTION ITEM: The ISAP Community Discussion Guide

Rod opened the meeting by introducing this month’s discussion guide, the ISAP
Community Discussion Guide. He turned the meeting over to Pat McKinley and Marie

Hansen. Marie stated that we would use rules of brainstorming, just as we had with
discussion of the Family Domain Guide at our last meeting. She asked Coalition
members which information in the Guide presented red flags for them.

Discussion:

¥

Ko o

IS

Amy Moore stated that taxes on alcohol, under community risk factors,
presented a red flag for her. Dormant tax rates have contributed to a gradual and
substantial decline in the price of alcoholic beverages. Karen Waters added that
the fact that the tax rate hasn’t changed in Michigan since 1966 is also a red
flag. Pat said that this is a prime time for the Coalition to address the taxation
issue, as it is currently getting a lot of press.

Pat also stated that the statistics from page 5 regarding decrease in youth
perceptions that they will be caught if abusing substances is a red flag. Micki
Fuhrman added that decrease by age in youth perception of how wrong it is to
drink also presents a red flag. Pat stated that Michigan State University (MSU)
data regarding youth perception of laws addressing drinking, and their actual
enforcement, presents a red flag. Marie then stated that there may actually be a
data gap regarding perception and actual consequences, but the more crucial
piece of missing information is how the laws are being enforced. This varies a
great deal from one local law enforcement agency and adjudicating system to
another. The Coalition needs to determine:

What are the different types of penalties?

How consistent are they?

How severe are they?

Barry Kaufman stated that a data gap might exist in what community members
would like consequences for abusing substances to be. For example:

Raising taxes on alcohol?

More effective treatment programs?

Rod stated that the Coalition could support different types of efforts. He added
that we don’t have statistics on community beliefs about youth drinking
behavior, especially regarding MSU students. Rod stated that his personal
belief is that the statistic on page 6 of the Guide, stating that 0.2% of MSU
students drank daily over the past 30 days, is much too low. Marie stated that
Lloyd Johnson’s University of Michigan data indicates that college students
drink differently than others who are abusing alcohol. They drink larger
amounts on fewer occasions. She also added that this would be an easy thing to
test.

Becky Allen passed around a copy of the Percentage of College Students who
Drank in their Freshman Year handout, which is part of the National Collegiate
Health Assessment. She stated that responses on this student survey tool don’t
vary from year to year, proving response validity. The entire MSU student
body is surveyed and respondent data is then weighed. She added that 50 to




60% of students typically respond to the survey. She also stated that while
consumption of beer has decreased among MSU students, consumption of
liquor has increased. Rod emphasized again that a data gap lies in the
community’s perception of student substance use. Micki added that the gap
also includes perception of the drinking behavior of youth who are younger than
college age.

Amy stated that the transitions and mobility statistics from pages 11 and 12
present a red flag for her.

Marie discussed social and retail access to alcohol. She focused on beer keg
sales as a common source of alcohol, from page 11 of the Guide. Marie asked
Andrina Donaldson if local law enforcement agencies are able to determine the
source (seller) of kegs when problems result due to the sale. Andrina said that
the keg purchaser typically doesn’t want to give that information. She said that
the property owner where the keg party takes place is held accountable for any
problems due to over-consumption. Karen stated that tracking of local beer keg
sales and data regarding registration is something she is working on, with keg
registration being a possible goal for the Coalition. Becky asked about the
purpose of beer keg tracking and registration. Pat stated that it acts as a
deterrent. Pat then described a trial beer keg registration policy that took place
in East Lansing in 1996. The trial registration occurred as a result of a girl
dying after consuming too much beer at an East Lansing keg party. A
ramification of the project was that businesses in East Lansing lost thousands of
dollars when Lansing keg sellers took advantage of the opportunity by
advertising their own keg sales. Registration of beer kegs would address both
access and accountability issues. Without some type of registration, no one
takes responsibility for problems regarding resultant drunk and disorderly
offenses and police lack the manpower to further investigate. Marie stated that
it would be easier to enact this type of policy at a state level, if we started with
an Ingham County registration policy. Harriett added that M. & M. Distributors
and Anheiser Busch are presently the only local distributors of beer kegs.
Micki stated that we have a data gap regarding 18 to 21 year olds who are not
attending college. The Youth Risk Behavior Survey, from which a lot of our
data comes, doesn’t distinguish between the two.

Amy stated that the extreme economic deprivation data from page 16 of the
Guide is a red flag. She identified the statistics regarding children in poverty
ages 0-17 and students receiving free/reduced lunches. Michelle Nicholson
stated that 68 to 78% of Lansing area students receive free or cost reduced
lunches. Discussion then focused on protective factors such as Boy Scout and
Girl Scout Leagues. Amy stated that these programs are available in Lansing
only on a volunteer basis and typically aren’t taken advantage of. Marie stated
that local residents perception regarding program availability is a data gap.
Marie identified deaths and injuries from alcohol related traffic crashes in
Ingham County, from page 15 of the Guide, as a red flag for her.

Becky commented that the bulk of the focus in the Guide appears to be on
MSU. Marie emphasized that all MSU data is based on an effort to be
inclusive, and that these are discussion guides, which will lead to problem



statements. Becky stated that house parties happen in Ingham County at other
places than MSU. Marie stated that local arrest data for house parties is
available to us. The Coalition further discussed access routes. Marie stated that
alcohol is readily available in Ingham County through social access routes,
which include house parties and other social settings. Amy added that our
current data indicates that youth typically access alcohol through their parents
and through older youth. Sharon McWilliams stated that the Coalition should
look at Ingham County communities individually, as alcohol is a bigger
problem out-county than it is in the city of Lansing.

¥ Michelle asked if there would be an opportunity to revise questions on the
Prevention Needs Assessment (PNA) Survey, based on indicators chosen by the
Coalition. Marie responded that we’d continue to add other sources of data
rather than actually change the PNA Survey. Michelle sited page 2 of the
Guide, stating that after-school clubs could be added to our data as a protective
factor. Pat reminded the Coalition that data in this Discussion Guide reflects
the community, and Marie added that Neighborhood Centers are a protective
factor in the community.

¥ Barry asked if questions about peer perception of youth drinking behavior are
included in the PNA Survey, which was affirmed.

¥ Tine Laux stated that it is helpful to know about federal risk and protective
factors. She sited the correlation between use of seat belts and fewer alcohol
related traffic crashes.

¥ Rod and Marie summarized the discussion. They stated that problem
statements would be formed out of this conversation and brought back to the
Coalition.

lll. Old Business:
Rod stated that he would change the order of items presented under Old Business today.

a. Committee Reports:

1. Family Domain Workgroup — Micki stated that there was no report for the
Workgroup today.

2. Data Workgroup — Rod stated that the Workgroup had reconvened this
week. Amanda Menzies from Public Sector Consultants had been present
at the meeting. A decision was made to have a companion piece for the
Substance Abuse in the Capital Area developed, which will act as a
presentation tool for Coalition members.

3. Media/Marketing Committee — Rod stated that this Committee met for the
first time this week. Discussion items had included:

¥ Presentation of our data to the media.

¥ A marketing work plan.

¥ Branding of the Coalition. The Committee voted to change the
name of the Coalition to Ingham Substance Abuse Prevention.
Essentially we’ll simply drop “Coordinating Council” form our
title, making it easier to use and to remember. We will keep the




first part of our name because it states what we are, and the
community has become familiar with it. We will informally still
refer to ourselves as the Coalition.
Action: Amy moved that the name change be accepted. The Coalition voted
unanimously to change our name to Ingham Substance Abuse Prevention.

4. Evaluation Committee — Sharon Granger stated that she would speak on
behalf of this Committee, previously not on today’s agenda. Sharon
informed the Coalition that this Committee was formed out of the first
Outcome in Goal 1 of our Implementation Plan. (Goal 1 Outcome 1
Objective 1.4) According to the Objective, it 1s comprised of: herself, as a
representative of United Way, Pat McKinley representing Cristo Rey
Community Center, Bob Glandon, formerly of the Ingham County Health
Department, and Jim Paparella, Executive Director of Capital Area Child
and Family Services. She said that the Committee was well on its way
toward accomplishing the 4 outcomes listed in the objective. The
Committee has developed a site visit evaluation tool. Four (4) agencies
have signed assessment agreements. They are:

1. Child Abuse Prevention Service’s Family Growth Center

2. Capital Area Child and Family Services

3. National Council on Alcoholism/Lansing Regional Area

4. Cristo Rey Community Center’s Roots and Wings Program
Sharon, Pat, Bob and Jim will conduct the four site visits during the last
week of February. The Coalition will then vote on the documented
assessments. Sharon passed around a copy of the Capital Area United
Way Outcomes and Site Visit Project abstract.

b. Drug Free Communities Grant

Sara stated that ISAP will apply for this funding. Capital Area United Way has agreed to
be the fiduciary and Pat has agreed to help write the proposal. Sara added that we may be
able to put the problem statements we have and will create into the proposal. As this is a

five-year grant, we will start with the city of Lansing and work our way out to other parts

of the county.

V. Mid-South Announcements:

Harriett made one announcement, in the absence of MidSouth Substance Abuse
Commission (MSSAC) staff. She stated that the first College Policies Workshopwill be
held on Monday, 2-5-°07. Marie will be facilitating the workshop. Representatives from
Michigan State University, Lansing Community College and Davenport University will
be attending.

V. Other Announcements:

a. Rod announced that ISAP would partner with the Comcast Network in its
broadcast of the HBO Documentary “Addiction”, which will be telecast from



March 15 through March 19, 2007. “Addiction” was produced to provide
education about advancements in understanding drug and alcohol addiction, and
its treatment as a brain disease. Rod stated that ISAP members would provide
public announcements on substance abuse and our work, in conjunction with the
broadcast.

b. Micki stated that Detective Tony Saucedo would be facilitating another
Methamphetamine Workshop this February. The presentation primarily provides
information on identifying signs of methamphetamine ingredients to in-home
social workers. Joel Eisinger stated that the workshop had been very helpful for
him as a Lutheran Social Services in-home social worker.

C. Micki read drafts of 3 letters from ISAP. The 3 were written to:

¥ Schuler’s Bookstore - The intent of this letter is to encourage Schuler’s to
remove books on drinking games from their shelves, or at least from
prominent display.

¥ Koh!’s and Target Chain stores - The Kohl’s and Target letters are in
appreciation of their removal of drinking games (board
games that encourage players to drink alcohol) from their shelves already.
Karen distributed copies of a January 12, 2007 Lansing State Journal
article, describing how letter-writing campaigns by substance abuse
prevention groups influenced these actions.

¥ East Lansing restaurant/liquor licensees who have not yet joined the
Responsible Hospitality Council (RHC) - The intent of the letter to East
Lansing restaurants is to encourage them to join RHC. Becky will read
the letter at the next RHC meeting, before it is sent out.

d. Sara reported on a Capacity Building Grants Opportunity offered through the
Power of We Consortium. Charitable, nonprofit organizations serving Ingham
County are eligible for $280,000 in funding, intended to help Community and
Faith-Based Organizations grow. This is another grant opportunity that ISAP is
looking at.

e. Becky stated that her department at MSU entered into a conversation with
Anheiser-Busch about housing “Spykes”, the brightly colored alcohol product in
miniature-sized bottles, with the rest of the alcohol department. Spykes are
clearly marketed toward youth, and placing them near registers makes them more
accessible.

f. Tine passed around a copy of a survey through USA Today. Listed at the top of
the survey is a compilation of advertisers for Super Bowl commercials. The
majority of the top ten advertisements are for alcoholic products.

Next Meeting: March 1, 2007

Adjourn: 1:30 pm



